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Planning Commission Staff Report 
 

Project Type:  Sign Package    
 

Meeting Date:  November 14, 2016 
 

From:   Jessica Henry, AICP   
   Senior Planner   
 

Location: Northeast quadrant of Long Road and Edison Avenue 
 

Applicant: Bill Yount Signs     
 

Description: Monarch Center, Sign Package: A request for a Sign Package to establish sign 
criteria for the Monarch Center development located north of Edison Avenue and 
east of Long Road.  

 
PROPOSAL SUMMARY 
This project was reviewed at the October 26, 2016 Planning Commission Meeting, where motions to 
approve several of the requested signs were passed by the Planning Commission. Subsequently, a 
Motion to defer review of the remaining signage until the November 14th Planning Commission meeting 
was passed by a vote of 8 to 0. Accordingly, the applicant has prepared a packet with the remaining 
signage that is being requested for approval by the Planning Commission. In addition to this packet, the 
property owner of the vacant Lot C of Monarch Center has submitted a letter to the Planning Commission 
regarding the monument signs on Long Road and Edison Avenue that will serve the entire Monarch 
Center development, including the future development on Lot C. 
 
The signs included in the current submittal were not approved at the October 26, 2016 Planning 
Commission meeting. If the Planning Commission chooses to approve any of these remaining signs, they 
will be incorporated into the Monarch Center Sign Package which already includes those signs that were 
approved at the October 26, 2016 meeting. 

VII. E. 

http://www.chesterfield.mo.us/
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Figure 1: Monarch Center Development  

 

 
Submittal Overview 
The packet attached to this report includes the following signs:  
 

 
Figure 2: Signage Location Exhibit (Additional signage on Edison Express lot) 
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1. Project Identification Sign (Permanent Signs; Business and Identification Signs – Freestanding)  
 
Sign Locations 1 & 3 in Figure 2: Two identical signs that are 13 feet in height and 100 square 
feet in outline area (signage only, excluding monument) are proposed at the entrances to the 
development from Long Road and Edison Avenue. These are the signs referenced in the attached 
letter from the Lot C property owner. 

 

 
Figure 3: 100 sq. ft. Monument Signs (2) 
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2. LED Gas Grades (Electronic Message Center) 

 
Sign Location 2 in Figure 2: The monument sign identified below as Figure 4 was approved at the 
10/26/2016 Planning Commission with manual change copy gas grades. The applicant is 
requesting that LED gas grades be permitted. Based on the discussion at the 10/26/2016 Planning 
Commission meeting, Staff has worked with the City Attorney and recommends that the 
following condition be added if the Planning Commission chooses to approve this sign: 

 
This sign is approved with three (3) LED changeable copy areas each 1.6 square feet in area 
with rolling, scrolling, flashing, animated, or otherwise intermittently lit characters prohibited. 

 
 

Figure 4: LED Gas Grades requested
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3. Directional Signs (Permanent Signs; Directional Signs)  
 
Sign Locations 4, 8, & 16 in Figure 2: The UDC permits directional signs up to 10 square feet in 
outline area per facing. These signs cannot extend more than six feet above the average grade 
or adjacent street. No limit on the number of directional signs allowed for a site is established 
within the UDC. The applicant is proposing four new directional signs for the site.  
 

Figure 5: 6 sq. ft. Directional Signs 

 
The fourth sign is proposed to be 12 square feet in outline area and 5’6” in height. This sign is 
located near the car wash tunnel exit and provides directions for vehicles based on the type of 
car wash purchased. 
 

 
                  Figure 6: Lot A, 12 sq. ft. Directional Sign 
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4. Menu Board Signs (Supplementary Regulations) 
 
Sign Location 12 in Figure 2: The applicant is requesting two 26.7 square foot car wash order 
board signs and one 12 square foot car wash order board sign. As the drive-thru is two lanes in 
width, the signage is spread across the lanes and Staff does not take exception to the size, 
number, or location of these signs. 
 

 
               Figure 7: Carwash Menu Signs: 2 at 26.7 ft2 & 1 at 12 ft2 

 
STAFF ANALYSIS 
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission take the following into consideration when reviewing 
this request: 
 

1. Consideration should be given to the allowance of LED gas grade signage and, if approved, Staff 
recommendation that this signage be restricted in the following manner: 

This sign is approved with three (3) LED changeable copy areas each 1.6 square feet in area 
with rolling, scrolling, flashing, animated, or otherwise intermittently lit characters prohibited. 
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For discussion purposes, a summary of signs detailed in this report is presented in the chart below.  
 

Type Applicant’s Request Staff Notes 
 

Monument Signs 2 included in current request.  Size exceeds UDC allowances for 
proposed signs. UDC permits manual 
change gas grades. 
 

LED Gas Grades Request for LED gas grades on 
approved monument sign.  

UDC permits manual change gas grades. 

Drive-thru menu board 
signs for Car Wash 

3 freestanding; 2 at 26.7 ft2 each and 
1 at 12 ft2 

 

UDC does not specifically address.  
 

Directional signs 4 signs total requested; 2 signs at 3’6” 
in height and 6 ft2 in area and 2 signs 
at 5’6” in height and 12 ft2 in area 

UDC permits 6’ in height and 10 ft2 in area 
unless in setbacks. Staff has no concern 
with setbacks.  UDC does not place a limit 
on the # of directional signs permitted per 
site. 
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Staff has reviewed the Sign Package and found the proposal to be consistent with the purpose and intent 
of the UDC. Staff takes no exception to the signs presented in the table above. Staff recommends 
approval of the proposed Sign Package for the Monarch Center Development as submitted with the 
following condition on the LED component of sign location #2:  
 

This sign is approved with three (3) LED changeable copy areas each 1.6 square feet in area 
with rolling, scrolling, flashing, animated, or otherwise intermittently lit characters prohibited. 

 
 Please note, any amendments to the provisions of the approved Sign Package would require Staff 
review and approval by the Planning Commission.  
 

MOTION 
The following options are provided to the Planning Commission for consideration relative to this 
application: 
 

1) “I move to approve (or deny) the Sign Package for Monarch Center.” 
 
2) “I move to approve the Sign Package for Monarch Center……..” (Conditions may be added, 

eliminated, altered or modified) 
 
Attachments: Proposed Sign Package  
  Letter from Lot C Property Owner 

 
CC:  Aimee Nassif, Planning and Development Services Director    
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